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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Lanka Ashok Leyland PLC
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Lanka Ashok Leyland PLC (“the Company”), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2024, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information as set out on pages 10 to 55.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as at March 31, 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
for professional Accountants issued by CA Sri Lanka (Code of Ethics) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

1. Carrying Value of Inventories
Refer to material accounting policies in Note 3.10 and explanatory note in Note 21 of the financial

statements. The Company held inventories which comprised several different vehicles, generators and spare
parts with an aggregate carrying value of Rs.3,752,742,105/- as at March 31, 2024.
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Risk Description

Changes in economic sentiment or consumer preferences, demands and the introduction of newer models
with the latest design and technologies could result in inventories in hand no longer being sought after or
being sold at a discount. Estimating the future demand and the related selling prices of vehicles, generators
and spare parts are inherently subjective and uncertain because it involves management estimating the
extent of markdown of selling prices necessary to sell the older or slow-moving models in the period
subsequent to the reporting date. We identified valuation of inventories as a key audit matter because of the
significant judgment exercised by management in determining appropriate carrying value in inventories.

Our audit procedures included

= Evaluating whether the inventory provisions at the end of the reporting period were determined in
a manner consistent with the Company's inventory provision policy by recalculating the inventory
provisions based on the percentages and other parameters in the Company's inventory provision
policy.

= Assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the inventory ageing report were classified within
the appropriate ageing category by comparing individual items with the underlying documentation
which included purchase invoices and goods receipt notes.

=  Enquiring of management about any expected changes in plans for markdowns or disposals of slow
moving or obsolete inventories and comparing their representations with actual transactions
subsequent to the reporting date and assumptions adopted in determining the inventory provisions;

* Comparing, on a sample basis, the carrying value of inventories with sales prices subsequent to the
end of the reporting period.

= Attending inventory counts as at the year end to ensure the existence and condition of the
inventories as at the reporting date.

2. Recoverability of Rental and Trade receivables

Refer to material accounting policies in Note 3.4.1 and explanatory notes in Notes 19 & 22 (Rental
receivable from trade debtors & Trade and other receivables) of the financial statements. The carrying value
of Rentals receivable from Trade Debtors amounted to Rs. 415,867,412/- and Trade receivables amounted
to Rs 586,997,809/- as at March 31, 2024.

Risk Description

Assessing the allowance for impairment of Rental and Trade Receivables remains one of the most
significant judgments made by management particularly in light of the ongoing economic condition in the
country. We identified assessing the recoverability of receivable as a key audit matter because of the
significance of rental and receivable to the financial statements as a whole and the assessment of the
recoverability of trade receivable is inherently subjective and requires significant management judgment in
accordance with SLFRS 09, which increases the risk of error or potential management bias.
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Our audit procedures included;

=  Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design and implementation of management's key
internal controls relating to credit control, debt collections and making allowances for doubtful
debtors.

= Reviewing the appropriateness of the provisioning methodology used by management in
determining the impairment allowances against the requirements of SLFRS 09.

* Recomputing management's estimation of the impairment allowance determined based on the
expected credit loss method.

=  Obtaining an understanding of the key parameters and assumptions of the expected credit loss
model adopted by the management, including historical default data and management's estimated
loss rates. Assessing the reasonableness of management's loss allowance estimate by examining
the information used by management to form such judgements, including testing the accuracy of
the historical default data and evaluating whether the historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and forward looking information.

»  Challenging management's assumptions for the expected cashflows and the timing of the expected
cashflows in the scenario-based probability weighted impairment assessment of individually
significant customers.

= Assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the debtors ageing report were classified within the
appropriate ageing category by comparing individual items in the report with the underlying
documentation such as sales invoices.

»  Requesting for confirmations from major debtors and/or verifying subsequent settlements as an
alternative procedure.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information in the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SLAuSs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SLAuSs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.



kbMe!

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken
to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 163 (2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, we have obtained all the information
and explanations that were required for the audit and, as far as appears from our examination, proper
accounting records have been kept by the Company.

CA Sri Lanka membership number of the engagement partner responsible for signing this independent
auditor’s report is 1798

Chartered Accountants
Colombo, Sri Lanka
09 May 2024



LANKA ASHOK LEYLAND PLC
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Year Ended 31*" March

Note
Revenue 5
Cost of Sales
Gross Profit
Other Income 6
Selling and Distribution Expenses 7
Administrative Expenses
Impairment Reversal / (Charge) of Trade Receivables 8
Other Operating Expenses
Profit from Operations
Finance Income 9.1
Finance Cost 9.2
Net Finance Income / (Cost) 9
Profit Before Tax 10
Tax (Expense) / Reversal 11.1
Profit for the Year
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will Never be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
Remeasurement of Employee Benefits - Actuarial (Loss) / Gain 275
Deferred Tax Gain/ (Charge) on Defined Benefit Plan 11.3
Total Other Comprehensive Income, net of Tax
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share 12,
Adjusted Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization
(Adjusted EBITDA) 14

The Notes annexed form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

2924 2023
Rs. Rs.
5,404,387,774 3,487,704,617
(3,589,971,737) (2,969,418,313)
1,814,416,037 518,286,304
194,551,854 282,667,376
(29,813,836) (22,799,313)
(668,179,894) (570,395,869)
28,073,853 (51,292,523)
(144,792,205) (122,778,474)
1,194,255,809 33,687,501
69,262,053 72,367,900
(10,365,364) (25,232,311)
58,896,689 47,135,589
1,253,152,498 80,823,090
(395,365,601) 68,171,025
857,786,897 148,994,115
(93,831,402) 5,728,897
28,149,421 (1,718,669)
(65,681,981) 4,010,228
792,104,916 153,004,343
236.90 41.15
1,345,796,399 158,475,460
AN
b i



LANKA ASHOK LEYLAND PLC
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As At 31" March

ASSETS

Non Current Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment
Right-of-use Asset

Intangible Assets

Financial Investments

Rental Receivable from Trade Debtors
Deferred Tax Asset

Total Non Current Assets

Current Assets

Inventories

Trade and Other Receivables

Rental Receivable from Trade Debtors
Deposits and Prepayments

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Total Current Assets

Total Assets
EQUITY & LIABILITIES

Equity

Stated Capital

General Reserve

Retained Earnings

Equity attributable to Owners of the Company

Non Current Liabilities
Defined Benefit Obligation (Net)
Lease Liability

Total Non Current Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables
Amount due to Related Party
Current Tax Liabilities
Provision for Warranty
Lease Liability

Bank Overdrafts

Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Total Equity & Liabilities

Net Assets per Share

The Notes annexed form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Note

15
16
17
18
19.1
20

21
22
19.2
23
24.1

25
26

27.1
28.2

29
30
31
32
28.2
24.2

2024 2023
Rs. Rs.

1,051,332,875 697,391,472
16,771,752 36,021,119
644,325 920,356
131,904 11,542,980
41,795,691 314,633,296
231,069,976 313,755,104
1,341,746,523 1,374,264,327
3,752,742,105 2,623,994,152
619,357,222 459,839,299
374,071,721 524,178,650
55,924,997 112,241,570
1,441,114,057 27,050,059
6,243,210,102 3,747,303,730
7,584,956,625 5,121,568,057
49,375,150 49,375,150
887,347,500 887,347,500
3,652,674,229 2,877,612,617
4,589,396,879 3,814,335,267
57,723,545 109,918,855
11,112,605 30,420,490
68,836,150 140,339,345
989,740,655 730,660,779
1,655,721,179 333,303,000
196,925,645 19,007,471
9,773,122 594,547
23,523,537 30,355,200
51,039,458 52,972,448
2,926,723,596 1,166,893,445
2,995,559,746 1,307,232,790
7,584,956,625 5,121,568,057
1,267.49 1,053.44

It is certified that the Financial Statements have been prepared and presented in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act,

G R Jayalath
Assistant General Manager - Finance

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements.

Approvegl and signed for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Lanka Ashok Leyland PLC;

Ve ;-';'_"'_PH_J
KT L De Silva
Chairman
Colombo, 09™ May 2024

D A Abeyawardene
Director

L=Thief Executive Officer



LANKA ASHOK LEYLAND PLC
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Balance as at 01° April 2022

Total Comprehensive Income

Profit for the year
Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Total Comprehensive Income

Transactions with Owners of the Company
Contribution / Distribution

Unclaimed Dividend Reversed (Note 13.1)
Dividend (Note 13.2)
Total Transactions with Owners of the Company

Balance as at 31" March 2023

Balance as at 01% April 2023

Total Comprehensive Income

Profit for the year
Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Total Comprehensive Income

Transactions with Owners of the Company
Contribution / Distribution

Unclaimed Dividend Reversed (Note 13.1)
Dividend (Note 13.2)

Total Transactions with Owners of the Company

Balance as at 31°' March 2024

Stated General Retained Total
Capital Reserves Earnings Equity
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

49,375,150 887,347,500 2,759,922,036 3,696,644,686
- - 148,994,115 148,994,115
- - 4,010,228 4,010,228
- - 153,004,343 153,004,343
- - 894,668 894.668
- - (36,208,430) (36,208,430)
- - (35,313,762) (35,313,762)

49,375,150 887,347,500 2,877,612,617 3.814,335,267

49,375,150 887,347,500 2,877,612,617 3,814,335,267
- - 857,786,897 857,786,897
- - (65,681,981) (65,681,981)
- - 792,104,916 792,104,916
- - 1,060,911 1,060,911
B - (18,104,215) (18,104,215)
- - (17,043,304) (17,043,304)

49,375,150 887,347,500 3,652,674,229 4,589,396,879

The Notes annexed form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.




LANKA ASHOK LEYLAND PLC
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended 31 March

Note

Cash flows from Operating Activities
Profit Before Tax
Adjustment For :
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment 10
Depreciation of Right of Use Asscts 10
Amortization of Intangible Assets 10
Provision for Employee Benefits 27.4
Impairment Provision of Trade & Other Receivables 8
Reversal of Provision for Inventory 10
Finance Costs 9.2
Interest Income 9.1
Lease Interest Income 6
Gain on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 6
Charge / (Reversal) of Provision for Free Service 10
Charge / (Reversal) of Warranty Provision 10
Fair Value (Gain) / Loss on Equity Investments 9.2
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes
Working Capital Changes in
Inventories
Trade and Other Receivables
Amount due from Related Party
Trade and Other Payables
Amounts due to Related Party
Cash Generated from Operations
Interest Paid
Employee Benefits Paid 27.2
Investment in Plan Asset 27.3
Payments / Set off of Income Taxes 31
Net Cash Generated from / (Used In) Operating Activities
Cash flows from Investing Activities
Interest Received
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment 15.5
Acquisition of Intangible Assets 17
Net Cash Flows Generated from Investing Activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Short Term Loans obtained during the year 33.1
Short Term Loans repaid during the year 33.1
Payment for Lease Liability
Dividend Paid 13.2
Net Cash Flows Used in Financing Activities
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents
Net Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year
Net Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 24
Analysis of Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year
Cash & Cash Equivalents / -;"tﬁm\ 24.1
Bank Overdrafts S \242

ya, \\

i [ \ ".
The Notes annexed form an integral part of these Financial ?Iaus(h}km JE il

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

2024 2023
Rs. Rs
1,253,152,498 80,823,090
141,871,045 108,722,068
9,393,514 12,827,791
276,031 3,238,100
26,251,758 21,286,093
(28,073,853) 51,292,523
(127,013,905) (10,186,564)
10,365,364 25,226,657
(60,870,758) (70,558,490)
(144,590,886) (249,312,231)
(4,638,736) (5,217)
1,452,592 (3,017,682)
9,178,575 (2,884,985)
(12,142) 5,654
(166,411,401) (113,366,283)
1,086,741,097 (32,543,193)
(1,421,875,000) 279,112,709
(259,197,423) 73,640,457
618,439,973 168,813,149
257,925,482 (409,038,965)
1,322,418,179 (1,812,710,053)
517,711,211 (1,700,182,703)
1,604,452,308 (1,732,725,896)
(3,134,509) (15,325,348)
(18,183,715) (2,575,413)
(147,107,165) -
(106,612,878) (54,264,785)
(275,038,267) (72,165,546)
1,329,414,041 (1,804,891,442)
198,471,759 319,872,562
10,125,000 6,000
(80,395,047) (98,970,600)
- (1,104,125)
128,201,712 219,803,837
- 222,848,000
- (601,053,767)
(23,514,550) (23,052,196)
(18,104,215) (36,208,430)
(41,618,765) (437,466,393)
1,415,996,988 (2,022,553,998)
(25,922,389) 1,996,631,609
1,390,074,599 (25,922,389)
1,441,114,057 27,050,059
(51,039,458) (52,972,448)
1,390,074,599 (25,922,389)




LANKA ASHOK LEYLAND PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. REPORTING ENTITY
1.1 Domicile & Legal Form

Lanka Ashok Leyland PLC (“the Company”) is a Quoted Public Limited Liability Company incorporated
and domiciled in Sri Lanka under the provision of Companies Act. No. 17 of 1982 and re-registered under
the New Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007. The registered office of the Company is located at Panagoda,
Homagama.

1.2 Principal Activities and Nature of Operations

The Company is involved in import and assemble of Semi-Knocked-Down (SKD) chassis and fabricate
bodies, import and marketing of Ashok Leyland buses, trucks, truck chassis, spare parts, power generators
and let vehicles on hire. The Company also carries out repairs and restoration of commercial vehicles.

There were no significant changes in the nature of principal activities of the Company during the financial
year under review.

The number of employees at the end of the year was 222 (2023 — 230).
1.3 Ultimate Holding Company

The Company is a quoted public Company with 41.77% of the Share Capital held by Lanka Leyland (Pvt)
Limited and 27.85% of the Share Capital held by Ashok Leyland Limited — India.

1.4 Financial Year

The Company’s financial year ends on 31 March.
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards (referred “SLFRS/LKAS”) as laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka
(CA Sri Lanka) and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 and provide
appropriate disclosures as required by the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE). These
Financial Statements, except for information on cash flows have been prepared following the accrual basis
of accounting.

These SLFRSs and LKASs are available at the website of CA Sri Lanka — www.casrilanka.com.
These Financial Statements include the following components:

e Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income providing the information on the
financial performance of the Company for the year under review.

o Statement of Financial Position providing the information on the financial position of the
Company as at the year-end.

o Statement of Changes in Equity depicting all changes in shareholders’ funds during the year
under review of the Company.

o Statement of Cash Flows providing the information to the users, on the ability of the Company
to generate cash and cash equivalents and utilization of those cash flows.
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LANKA ASHOK LEYLAND PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e Notes to the Financial Statements comprising Accounting Policies and other explanatory
information.

2.2 Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements
of the Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 and Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards (SLFRSs/ LKASs).

The Board of Directors acknowledges this responsibility as set out in the Report of the Directors under
“Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Statements”.

2.3 Approval of Financial statements

The Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 315 March 2024 were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 09% May 2024.

2.4 Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and applied consistently with no
adjustments being made for inflationary factors affecting the Financial Statements, except for the following
material items in the statement of financial position.

Item Basis of Measurement
Retirement Benefit Obligation Measured at its present value, based on an actuarial
valuation as explained in Note 27. The accounting
policy is described in Note 3.11.2.

Equity Instruments Measured at its fair value in Note 18.1. The
accounting policy is described in Note 3.3.2.

2.5 Functional and Presentation Currency

The Company’s Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency and no level of rounding have been used in presenting amounts in the
Financial Statements, otherwise indicated.

2.6 Materiality and Aggregation

Each material class of similar items is presented in aggregate in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar
nature or function are presented separately unless they are immaterial.

2.7 Use of Judgments and Estimates
The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with LKAS / SLFRS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the

reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
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LANKA ASHOK LEYLAND PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.7.1 Judgements

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes.

Note 3.16 & 5— revenue recognition: whether revenue from contracts with customers are recognized over
time or at a point in time.

2.7.2 Assumptions and Estimation Uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties as at 31 March 2024 that have a significant
risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next financial
year is included in the following notes.

2.7.2.1 Useful Lifetime of Property, Plant and Equipment

Note 3.6 & 15: The Company reviews the residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of
Property, Plant and Equipment at each reporting date. Judgment of the management is exercised in the
estimation of these values, rates, methods and hence they are subject to uncertainty.

2.7.2.2 Deferred Taxation

Note 3.22.2 & 20: Deferred Tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date. Deferred Tax Liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences and for deferred
tax assets, availability of future taxable profits against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilized is assessed periodically.

2.7.2.3 Defined Benefit Plans

Note 3.11.2 & 27: The cost of the defined benefit obligation is determined using an actuarial valuation. The
actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases, and mortality
rates, etc. Due to the long-term nature of this obligation, such estimates are subject to significant
uncertainty.

2.7.2.4 Provisions for Obsolete and Slow-Moving Items

Note 3.9 & 21: Management’s judgment is used in the estimation of the amount and percentages of slow-
moving items when determining the provisions for obsolete and slow-moving items. These estimates are
based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes
to the provision made.

2.7.2.5 Impairment Losses on Trade Receivables and Rental Receivable from Trade Debtors

Note 3.4, 19 & 22: The Company reviews its individually significant receivables at each reporting date to
assess whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the profit or loss. In particular, management’s
judgment is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the
impairment loss. These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results
may differ.

If impairment is not required based on the individual assessment all such individually significant balances

are then assessed collectively, in groups of assets with similar risk characteristics. The Company measures
loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL). AP MG
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When estimating ECL, Company determines whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition. For this the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience, informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking information.

2.8 Going Concern

The Directors have made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that it
has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future and do not foresee a need for liquidation
or cessation of trading. Furthermore, the Management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the Financial
Statements of the Company continue to be prepared on a going concern basis.

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Except for the changes set out in Note 3.1 the Company has consistently applied the accounting policies as
set out below to all periods presented in these financial statements.

3.1 Changes in Material Accounting Policies

The company adopted disclosure of accounting policies Amendments to LKAS 1 from 01% January 2023.
Although the amendments did not result in any changes to the accounting policies themselves, the impacted
the accounting policy information disclosed in the financial statemenits.

The amendments require the disclosure of "material", rather than "significant", accounting policies. The
amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies,
assisting entities to provide useful, entity specific accounting policy information that users need to
understand other information in the financial statements.

Management reviewed the accounting policies and made updates to the information disclosed in Note 03
Material accounting polices (2023: Significant accounting policies) in certain instances in line with the
amendments.

3.2 Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency applying exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate of the
functional currency prevailing at the reporting date. Foreign currency differences are generally recognised

in profit or loss.

Statement of Financial Position

3.3 Current Versus non-current Classification

The Company presents Assets and Liabilities in Statement of Financial Position based on current / non-
current classification.

N

";5-
L
An asset as current when it is: p

e Expected to be realized or intended to sell or consume in normal operating cycle
e Held primarily for the purpose of trading
13
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¢ Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

s [tis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

e [tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e It does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Employee Benefit and Lease Liability not
payable within 12 months are classified as non-current liabilities.

3.4 Financial Instruments
3.4.1 Recognition and Initial Measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial
liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price.

3.4.2 Classification and Subsequent Measurement

On initial recognition, financial assets are classified as Amortised Cost, FVOCI — Debt Investment, FVOCI
— Equity Investment or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on
the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial asset measured at amortised cost comprises Trade and Other Receivables, Rental Receivable from

Trade Debtors and Cash and Cash Equivalents including Investment in Treasury Bills, Repo Investments
and Fixed Deposits.
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On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at
FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.

FVTPL comprises investments in equity shares.
Financial Assets — Business Model Assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale
of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management; the
risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial Assets — Assessment whether Contractual Cash Flows for Solely Payments of Principal and
Interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows 5mh that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
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- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual par amount,
a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par
amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the
prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial Assets — Subsequent Measurement and Gains and Losses
Financial Assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or
dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised

cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

3.4.3. Reclassification

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except and only in those rare
circumstances when the Company changes its objective of the business model for managing such financial
assets.

Financial Liabilities are not reclassified as such reclassifications are not permitted by SLFRS 9.
3.4.4 Derecognition
Financial Assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement of financial _ :
position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In lhesé i
.l'

cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial Liabilities

Feg R =
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled\‘\
or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash
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flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on
the modified-terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit
or loss.

3.4.5 Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts
and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
3.5 Impairment

3.5.1 Non-Derivative Financial Assets

Financial Instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for ECLs on financial assets measured at amortised cost.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. Loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all cash shortfalls. ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-Impaired Financial Assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

e significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
e adverse changes in the payment status of the debtor;

e it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or \%}\
N “_Cif;-:j _3‘_.;\: 07

Presentation of Allowance for ECL in the Statement of Financial Position a

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.
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Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost

The Company considers evidence of impairment for financial assets measured at amortized cost (loans and
receivables) on specific assets, accordingly all individually significant assets are assessed for specific
impairment.

The Company considers evidence of impairment for these assets at both an individual asset and a collective
level. All individually significant assets are individually assessed for impairment. Those found not to be
impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet individually
identified. Assets that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment.

In assessing collective impairment, the Company uses historical trends of the probability of default, the
timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to whether
current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or lesser than
suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are
recognized in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the Company considers that there
are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of
impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognized, then the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss.

3.5.2 Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount

of an asset or cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized
in the statement of profit or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment
loss had been recognized.

3.6 Stated Capital

Ordinary Shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Costs attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognized as
an expense.

3.7 Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated w1th

the asset will flow to the Company and cost of the asset can be measured reliably. V&

a) Cost {l ..

All Property, Plant and Equipment are initially recorded at cost and stated at historical cost ILSS.

depreciation and any impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable m\

the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and
direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for
its intended use, and the cost of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which
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b)

they are located. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is
capitalized as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment that is
accounted for separately, including major inspection and overhaul expenditure, is capitalized. Other
subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied in the item of Property, Plant and Equipment will flow to the Company and its cost can
be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of Property, Plant and Equipment are
recognized in the profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to systematically reduce the cost of items of Property, Plant and
Equipment less their estimated residual values using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives, and is generally recognized in profit or loss.

The Company provides depreciation from the date the assets are available for use whereas
depreciation of asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale and
the date that the asset is derecognized, at the following rates on a straight line basis over the periods
appropriate to the estimated useful lives of the different types of assets.

Factory Building 2.5%
Machinery & Equipment 5%

Factory Equipment 5%

Data processing Equipment 25%
Office Equipment & City office equipment 10%
Furniture & Fittings 10%
Motor Vehicles 20%
Plant & Machinery and Equipment - Assy Line 20%
Tools and Equipment — Factory 25%

Freehold land is not depreciated.

All assets carrying amounts are written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

<)

d)

Derecognition

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized net within other income in profit or
loss.

Capital Work-In-Progress

Capital expenses incurred during the year which are not completed as at the reporting date are

shown as Capital Work-In-Progress, whilst the capital assets which have been completed duuna.—'__; s

the year and put to use have been transferred to Property, Plant & Equipment.
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3.8 Intangible Assets

a) Cost

Intangible assets wholly consists of cost of computer software acquired by the Company and have
finite useful life. Intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and
impairment losses.

b) Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on capitalized intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the
future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is
expensed as incurred.
¢) Amortization

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis in the profit or loss from the date when the
assets available for use, over the best estimate of its useful economic life. The estimated useful life
of software is four years.

3.9 Capital Commitments

Capital commitments of the Company are disclosed in the Note 35 to the Financial Statements.

3.10 Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, after making due provisions for obsolete
and slow-moving items.

Net realizable value is the price at which inventories can be sold in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

Cost includes expenses incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing location
and condition.

Work-in-progress refers to jobs remaining incomplete in the workshop and stated at cost. Cost includes all
expenditure related directly to specific projects.

The Cost of each category of inventory is determined on the following basis.

- Spare Parts - At Weighted Average Cost
- Vehicles - At Actual Cost
- Goods in Transit 5 At Estimated Cost

3.11 Goods-in-Transit

Inventory items shipped, but not received by the Company as at the reporting date are treated as goods-in
transit. In such situations, estimates are made for unpaid bills in order to value goods-in-transit.
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3.12 Employee Benefits
3.12.1 Short-term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for
the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

3.12.2 Defined Benefit Plan- Gratuity
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

To cover the Company employees' gratuity liability, maintains a gratuity cash accumulation policy with
Life Insurance Corporation (Lanka) Limited. LIC (Lanka) is in charge of managing the defined benefit plan
for Lanka Ashok Leyland staff members. LIC (Lanka) Ltd will give a gratuity to a departing employee on
the day of the person's retirement or departure from the company. Gratuity of the employee is guaranteed
for the past service of the employee subject to the available fund balance with them as contributed by the
Company.

One of the salient features of the policy is that Employees are also covered by a life insurance facility. In
the event of a death before retirement, the nominees are entitled to receive the full gratuity, considering the
number of years until retirement.

The Defined Benefit Obligation recognized in the statement of financial position represents the present
value of the Defined Benefit Obligation as reduced by the fair value of plan assets.

The Company is liable to pay retirement benefits under the Payment of Gratuity Act, No. 12 of 1983. Under
the said Act, the liability to an employee arises only on completion of 5 years of continued service.

The liability recognized in the Financial Statements in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation as at the reporting date. The defined benefit obligation is calculated by a
qualified actuary as at the reporting date using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method as recommended
by LKAS 19 - ‘Employee Benefits’.

The Company recognizes all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans immediately in
other comprehensive income and all expenses related to defined benefit plans in employee benefit expense
in profit or loss.

3.12.3 Defined Contribution Plans- Employees Provident Fund & Employees Trust Fund

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contribution
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.

All the employees who are eligible for Employees’ Provident Fund and Employees’ Trust Fund are covered
by relevant contribution funds in line with the respective statutes. Employer’s contribution to the defined
contribution plans are recognized as an expense in the profit or loss when incurred.

The Company contributes 12% and 3% of the salary of each employee to the Employees’ Provident Fund
and Employees’ Trust Fund respectively.
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3.13 Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation.

3.14 Warranties

A provision for warranties is recognized when the underlying products or services are sold. The provision
is based on historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes against their associated
probabilities.

3.15 Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation.

A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses
its existence in the Financial Statements.

3.16 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

- the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly,
and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct
asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

- the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

- the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has
the decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset
is used. In rare cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is
predetermined, the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset if either: the Company has
the right to operate the asset; or

- the Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be
used.

As a Lessee
At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

However, for the leases of land and buildings in which it is a lessee, the Company has elected not to separate
non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.
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The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments-made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The
estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of Property, Plant
and Equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments.

- the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an
extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably
certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in the Company’s assessment of whether
it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease
payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents Right-of-use Assets in ‘Right-of-use Asset’ and Lease Liabilities in ‘Lease
Liability” in the Statement of Financial Position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value
assets and short-term leases. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

As a Lessor

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease
or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case,
then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Company
considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease
separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease, not with reference to the uriderlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which
the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.
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If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, then the Company applies SLFRS 15 to
allocate the consideration in the contract.

Finance Leases — as a Lessor

As per SLFRS 16, a lease which transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset is classified as a finance lease. At the commencement date, the Company recognises
assets held under finance lease in the SOFP and presents them as a “Rental receivable from Trade Debtors”
at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Net investment in the lease is arrived by discounting
lease payments receivable at the interest rate implicit in the lease, i.e. the rate which causes present value
of lease payments to equal to the fair value of the underlying asset and initial direct costs. The Company’s
net investment in lease is included in notes to financial statements. The finance income receivable is
recognised in “other income” over the periods of the leases so as to achieve a constant rate of return on the
net investment in the leases and treated as investing activity in the statement of cash flows.

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Incomne

3.17 Revenue
3.17.1 Revenue Streams
The Company’s revenue comprises only the revenue from contracts with customers. Revenue from contract with
customers generates primarily from New vehicle sales. The streams of Diesel generator set sales, Repair income,
spare part sales, vehicle hiring income and agency commission income are the other sources of income included
under revenue from contracts with customers.

3.17.2 Disaggregation of Revenue from Contract with Customers

Revenue from contract with customers is disaggregated by sales by type of counterparty, major products and
service lines and timing of revenue recognition under Note 05.

3.17.3 Performance Obligations and Revenue Recognition Policies

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company recognizes
revenue when it transfers control over a good or services to the customer.

The following table provides information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance
obligations in contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue recognition
policies.

Type of Product / Nature and Timing of Satisfaction of | Revenue Recognition Policies
Service Performance Obligations, Including
Significant Payment Terms

Sale of Vehicles with | The Company provides two free services | The Company allocates a portion of

Free Services within two months of the sale, for the | the consideration received to free
vehicles sold and price of these free | services. This allocation is based on
services is in-built in the selling price. the relative stand-alone selling prices.

The Company may recognize Revenue | The amount allocated to the free
from free services when the service is | services is deferred and is recognized
rendered. as revenue when the services are
rendered.
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Spare Parts Sales

The Company sells spare parts through
their stalls in several locations. The
goods are realized when the goods are
transported out, and the invoice is raised
afterwards.

Revenue from spare parts sales are
recognized at the dispatch point when
the Company transfer the control of
spare parts to the customer.

Body Parts
Construction

The Company constructs some of the
body parts in resalable nature, where it is
less customized to the particular
customer.

The Company also constructs the body
parts  fully customized to the
specifications provided by the customer.
The Company has a guaranteed right to
payment by the advance or the full
payment charged from the customer.

The Company transfers the control of
the goods over time. However, the
time consumed for construction and
sale of body part is insignificant.
Therefore, the revenue is recognized
at the point of transfer of body parts.

Local Agency
Commission

The Company acts as an indent agent for
Ashok Leyland — India.

LAL receives a commission from its
indent principal for arranging the
transaction.

The Company act as an agent for
Ashok Leyland — India. Therefore,
the commission is recognized at the
date of bill of lading except for any
consideration received on behalf of
the principal.

Diesel Generator Set
Sales

The Company provides generator sets
and installation services to the
customers. The price for the installation
service is in-built in the price of the
generator set.

Revenue from sale of generators are
recognized at the point of delivery.

Revenue from installation service is
also qualified for at a point in time
revenue recognition, since there is no
significant time gap for installation to
be taken place.

Hiring income

Company provides vehicles on hire basis
to government sectors

Revenue from hiring is recognized
over time due to the fact that the
entity identifies the receipts and
simultaneous consumption of
benefits from the services provided to
the customer.

3.18 Sale of Goods under Finance Lease

In accordance with paragraph 73 of SLFRS 16 — “Leases”, the selling profit or loss is recognized in the
period of sales in accordance with the policy followed for outright sales. When low rate of interest are
quoted, selling profit is restricted to that which would apply if a market rate of interest were charged. Cost
incurred in connection with negotiating and arranging the lease is recognized as an expense when the selling

profit is recognized.

The finance income over and above the selling profit is recognized over the lease term.

3.19 Gain or Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant & equipment are determined by comparing the
net sales proceeds with the catrying amounts of property, plant & equipment and are recognized net within
“other income” in Profit or Loss. % '
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3.20 Other Income
All other income is recognized on an accrual basis.
3.21 Expenditure Recognition

Expenses are recognized in the Profit or Loss on the basis of a direct association between the cost incurred
and the earnings of specific items of income.

All expenditure incurred in running of the business and in maintaining the Property, Plant and Equipment
in a state of efficiency is charged to profit or loss in arriving at the Profit / (Loss) for the year.

Expenditure incurred for the purpose of acquiring, extending or improving assets of permanent nature by
means of which to carry on the business or for the purpose of increasing earning capacity of the business
has been treated as capital expenditure.

For the purpose of presentation of profit or loss the directors are of the opinion that “function of expenses
method” presents fairly the elements of the enterprise’s performance, and hence such presentation method
is adopted.

3.21.1 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, except to the extent
where borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production of a
qualifying asset, which takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale, are
capitalized as part of the specific asset.

3.22 Finance Income and Finance Costs

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested and dividend income. Interest income is
recognized as it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognized
in profit or loss on the date that the Company’s right to receive payment is established, which in the case
of quoted securities is normally the ex-dividend date.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, and overdraft interest expenses. Borrowing costs
that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method. Foreign currency gains and losses on
financial assets and financial liabilities are reported on a net basis as either finance income or finance cost
depending on whether foreign currency movements are in a net gain or net loss position.

3.23 Income Tax Expense

Income Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognized in profit
or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity
or in other comprehensive income.

The Company has determined that interest and penalties related to income taxes, including uncertain tax
treatments, do not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore accounted them undethAS :?_.,_

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets. Ve e

3.23.1 Current Taxation

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the ycar ‘uemﬂ ta,\ 4
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in reqﬁec{‘of
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previous years, also reflecting uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. Current tax payable also includes
any tax liability arising from the declaration of dividends.

The Company is liable to taxation in accordance with the Inland Revenue Act, No. 24 of 2017 and
subsequent amendmenits there to.

3.23.2 Deferred Taxation

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which the
Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they
reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity,
but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will
be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized, based on the level of future taxable profit forecasts and
tax planning strategies.

3.24 Fair Value Measurement

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most
advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its
non-performance risk.

Number of Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both
financial and nonfinancial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes based on the following methods. Where applicable, further information about the
assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market observable data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used
in the valuation techniques as follows;

* Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities

* Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable from the asset or liability
either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived prices)

s Level 3 - Inputs from the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs)

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorized in different levels
of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level
of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
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3.25 Events after the Reporting Period

All material and important events if any which occur after the reporting date have been considered and
disclosed in Note 38 to the Financial Statements.

3.26 Cash Flow Statement

The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared by using the ‘Indirect Method’ of preparing cash flows in
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard- LKAS 7 on ‘Statement of Cash Flows’.

3.27 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash at bank, cash in hand and fixed deposits with maturities of
three months or less from the acquisition date and are used by the Company in the management of its short-
term commitments. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and forming an integral part of the
Company’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the Statement of Cash Flows.

3.28 Earnings per Share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss that is attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by
the weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss that is attributable to ordinary shareholders and
the weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

3.29 Dividends on Ordinary Shares

Final dividends on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

4. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka has issued the following new Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards which will become applicable for financial periods beginning after the
current financial year. Accordingly, the Company has not applied the following new or amended
standards in preparing these Financial Statements. The following amended standards and
interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's Financial
Statements.

e Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non Current and Non current liabilities with Covenants
(Amendments to LKAS 1) (The amendments apply to annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 01* January 2024)

e Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendment to LKAS 7 and SLFRS 7) (The amendments apply
to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01% January 2024)

e Other accounting Standards

o The following new and amended accounting standards are not expected to have a
significant impact on the company’s financial statement.

o Lease liabilities in a sale and leaseback (Amendment to SLFRS 16) P

o Lack of Exchangeability (Amendment to IAS 21) :

28




LANKA ASHOK LEYLAND PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended 31" March

5 REVENUE
5.1 Disaggregation of Revenue from Contract with Customers

5.1.1 Major Products/ Service Lines
New Vehicle Sales
Diesel Generator Set Sales
Repair Income
Spare Parts Sales
Vehicle Hiring Income
Local Agency Commission

5.1.2 Sales by Type of Counter-party
Government Entities
Corporates and Institutions
Individuals

5.1.3 Timing of Revenue Recognition
Products & Services Transferred at a Point in Time
Product & Services Transferred Over Time

5.2 Inrespect of Commission, Management considers that the following factors indicate the Company acts as an agent;

2024 2023
Rs. Rs

4,229,076,849 2,698.724,989
44,486,891 66,122,086
290,180,441 211,997,961
373,592,210 232.949 366
467,051,383 249,699,443
- 28.210,772
5,404,387,774 3,487,704,617
959,870,032 556,531,316
3,059,312,029 1,892,622.241
1,385,205,713 1,038,551,060
5,404,387,774 3,487,704,617
4,937,336,391 3,238,005,174
467,051,383 249,699,443
5,404,387,774 3,487,704,617

- The Company neither takes title to nor is exposed to inventory risk related to goods, does not have discretion in

establishing prices and has no significant responsibility in respect of the goods sold.

- The Company receives indent commission for the arrangement of sale of the goods and all the risk related to the

transaction is borne by the supplier of the goods.

For the Year Ended 31° March

6 OTHER INCOME
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Lcase Interest Income (Note 19.7)
Sundry Income

7 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Distribution Expenses Comprise of the Followings;

Sales Promotions
Discounts

Advertising

Other Selling Expenses

8 IMPAIRMENT REVERSAL / (CHARGE) OF TRADE RECEIVABLES
Impairmment Reversal of Rental Receivable from Trade Receivables (Note 19.3)
Impairment Charge of Trade Receivables (Note 22.2)

9 NET FINANCE INCOME

9.1 Finance Income
Interest Income
Return on Plan Assets
Net Foreign Exchange Gain
Financial Assets at FVTPL - Net Change in Fair Value Gain

9.2  Finance Cost
Interest Expensc on Short Term Borrowings
Interest Expense on Bank Overdrafts
Interest Cost on Lease Liability

Financial Asscts at FVTPL - Net Change in Fair Value Loss

NET FINANCE INCOME

2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
4,638,736 5.217
144,590,886 249,312,231
45,322,232 33,349,928
194,551,854 282,667,376
2,227,330 1,559,168
3,184,491 1,587,769
- 31.200
24,402,015 19,621,176
29,813,836 22,799,313
147,068,318 7,201,136
(118,994,465) (58,493,659)
28,073,853 (51,292,523)
53,883,168 70,558,490
6,987,590 =
8,379,153 1,809,410
12,142 =
69,262,053 72,367,900
- (3,806,829)
(729,059) (10,250,715)
(9,636,305) (11,169,113)
(10,365,364) (25,226,657)
- (5,654)
(10,365,364) (25,232.311)
58,896,689 47,135,589
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For the Year Ended 31" March

10

10.1

11

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax is stated afier charging all the expenses / (reversal) including followings:

Directors’ Emoluments
Auditors' Remuneration - Audit Services

- Audit Related Services

- Non Audit Services
Staft Cost (Note 10.1)
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment (Note 15)
Depreciation of Right of Use Assct (Note 16)
Amortization of Intangible Assets (Note 17)
Reversal of Provision for Slow Moving and Obsolete Stocks (Note 21.2)
Charge / (Reversal) of Provision for Free Service (Note 29.1)
Charge / (Reversal) of Warranty Provision (Note 32)

Staff Cost

Salaries, Wages and Other Benefits
Defined Contribution Plans - EPF
Defined Contribution Plans - ETF
Defined Benefit Plans (Note 27.3)

TAX EXPENSE

2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
16,445,000 16,275,000
2,725,000 2.300,000
75,000 66,000
460,000 400,000
441,750,878 365,650,617
141,871,045 108,722,068
9,393,514 12,827,791
276,031 3.238,100
(127,013,905) (10,186,564)
1,452,592 (3,017,682)
9,178,575 (2,884,985)
385,614,699 316,477,256
23,907,537 22,309,814
5,976,884 5.577,454
26,251,758 21,286,093
441,750,878 365,650,617

The Company is liable to taxation at the rate of 30% in accordance with the Inland Revenue Act. No. 24 of 2017 and subsequent amendments there

to. The composition of income tax expense is as follows ;

For the Year Ended 31" March

11.1

Tax (Reversal) / Expense

Income Tax on Profits for the year (Note 11.2)

Over Provision of Current Tax in Respect of Previous years
Deferred Tax Expense / (Reversal) (Note 11.3)

Reconciliation of the Accounting Profit and Taxable Profit

Profit Before Tax

Income from Other Sources and Exempt Income
Aggregated Expenses Disallowed for Taxation
Aggregated Deductible Expenses for Taxation
Assessable Income from Business

Assessable Income from Investment

Taxable Income

Taxation

Income Tax at 14%

Income Tax at 24%

Income Tax at 30%

Income Tax on Profits for the year

Deferred Tax Reversal / (Charge) Recognized in Comprehensive Income

Statement of Profit or Loss (Note 20)
Other Comprehensive Income (Note 20)

30

2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
284,531,052 33,617,820
- 126,000
110,834,549 (101,914,845)
395,365,601 (68,171,025)
1,253,152,498 80,823,090
(58,790,647) (70,967,614)
92,951,331 207,980,819
(392,759,511) (163,658,698)
894,553,671 54,177,597
53,883,168 70,558,490
948,436,839 124,736,087
- 85,292
= 14,822,115
284,531,052 18,710,413
284,531,052 33,617,820
(110,834,549) 101,914,845
28,149,421 (1,718,669)
(82,685,128) 100,196,176
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11 TAX EXPENSE (CONT.)

For the Year Ended 31" March

11.4 Effective Tax Rate
Effective Tax Rate Excluding Deferred Tax (Note 11.5)

Effective Tax Rate Including Deferred Tax (Note 11.5)

Effective Tax Rate Including Deferred Tax and Over Provision of Current Tax in Respect of Previous

years (Note 11.5)

For the Year Ended 31* March

11.5 Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
Profit Before Tax
Income Tax Expense at the Average Statutory Income Tax Rate
Exempted Income
Disallowed Expenses
Deductible Expenses
Effective Tax Rate Excluding Deferred Tax
Temporary Differences
Effective Tax Rate Including Deferred Tax
Over Provision of Current Tax in Respect of Previous years
Effective Tax Rate Including Deferred Tax and Over Provision of
Current Tax in Respect of Previous years

2024 2023
Rs. Rs
22.71% 41.59%
31.55% -84.50%
31.55% -84.35%
2024 2023
Rate Rs. Rate Rs.
1,253,152,498 80,823,090
30.00% 375,945,749 26.95% 21,782,759
-0.12% (1,472,244) -0.14% (110,264)
2.23% 27,885,400 69.35% 56,053,239
-9.40% (117,827,853) -54.57% (44,107,914)
22.71% 284,531,052 41.59% 33,617,820
8.84% 110,834,549 -126.10% (101,914,845)
31.55% 395,365,601 -84.50% (68,297,025)
0.00% - 0.16% 126,000
31.55% 395,365,601 -84.35% (68,171,025)
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

12.1 Basic Earnings per Share
Basic Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary sharcholders by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year
The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year and the previous year are adjusted for events that have changed the number of
ordinary shares outstanding

For the Year Ended 31* March 2024 2023
Profit Attributable to Ordinary Sharcholders (Rs ) 857,786,897 148,994,115
Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares 3,620,843 3,620,843
Basic and Diluted Eamings per Share (Rs.) 236.90 41.15

12.2 Diluted Earnings per Share
The calculation of diluted earning per share is based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding after adjustment for the effect of all diluted ordinary shares
There were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares outstanding at any time during the year and previous year. Therefore, Diluted Earnings per Share is same
as Basic Eamnings per share shown above.

13 DIVIDEND PER SHARE
After the reporting date, the following dividend was proposed by the Board of Directors. The Dividend has not been recognized as liability in the Financial
Statements in compliance with LKAS 10 "Events After the Reporting Period"

For the Year Ended 31" March 2024 2023
Dividend for the Year (Rs.) 54,312,645 18,104,215
Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares 3,620,843 3,620,843
Dividend per Share (Rs.) 15.00 5.00

13.1 During the year, an amount of Rs, 1,060,911/~ (2022/23 - Rs, 894,668/-) reversed as unclaimed dividend.

13.2  2022/23 Company has declared a first and final Dividend amount of Rs, 18,104,215/~ was paid during 2023/24 and dividend declared for 2021/22 year
amounting to Rs. 36,208,430/- paid during 2022/23

14  ADJUSTED EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST, TAX, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION ( ADJUSTED EBITDA)
The Directors of the Company have presented the performance measure adjusted EBITDA as they monitor this performance measure at high level and they
believe this measure is relevant to an understanding of the Company’s financial performance. Adjusted EBITDA is calculated by adjusting protit from
continuing operations to exclude the impact of Taxation, Net Finance Costs, Depreciation, Amortization, Impairment Losses / Reversals related Intangible
Assets, Property, Plant and Equipment.
Adjusted EBITDA is not a defined performance measure in SLFRS / LKAS. The Company’s definition of adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable with
similarly titled performance measures and disclosures by other entities
Reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to Profit from Operations;

For the Year Ended 31" March 2024 2023

Note Rs. Rs.

Profit from Continuing Operations 857,786,897 148,994,115
Tax Expense / (Reversal) i 11.1 395,365,601 (68,171,025)
Profit before Tax 1,253,152,498 80,823,090
Adjustments for:
- Net Finance (Income) 9 (58,896,689) (47,135,589)
- Depreciation of Property, Plant & Equipment e\ 10 141,871,045 108,722,068
- Depreciation of Right-of-use Asset ‘f‘ 10 9,393,514 12,827,791
- Amortisation of Intangible Assets | 10 276,031 3,238,100

Adjusted EBITDA 1,345,796,399 158,475,460
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LANKA ASHOK LEYLAND PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (CONT.)

15.6  There is no permanent fall in the value of Property, Plant and Equipment which require a provision for impairment.

15.7  There were no restrictions existed on the title to the Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company as at the reporting date.

15.8  There were no capitalized borrowing costs related to the acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment during the year (2022/23 - Nil).

15.9  During the year 2023/24, the Company has started concreate laying in the parking shed of factory premises and total costs incurred up to 31%
March 2024 is Rs. 37,263,605/ and recorded under Capital Work-in-progress.

16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Carrying amounts of Right-of-use Assets.

As At 31" March 2024 2023

Rs. Rs.

Cost
Balance at beginning of the year 96,101,206 90,147,130
Additions - 15,829,294
Lease Modification (9,855,853) (9,875,218)
Balance at end of the year 86,245,353 96,101,206
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of the year 60,080,087 47,252,296
Charge for the year 9,393,514 12,827,791
Balance at end of the year 69,473,601 60,080.087
Carrying Value as at 31™* March 16,771,752 36,021,119

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As At 31* March 2024 2023
Cost Rs. Rs.
Balance at beginning of the year 28,817,321 27,713,196
Additions - 1,104,125
Balance at end of the year 28,817,321 28,817,321
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at beginning of the year 27,896,965 24,658,865
Charge for the year 276,031 3,238,100
Balance at end of the year 28,172,996 27,896,965
Carrying Value as at 31 March 644,325 920,356

17.1 Intangible asset consist of ERP software Purchased during 2007 & 2018, Microsoft License Purchased during the year 2014 and also HR system
purchased during the year.

172 Intangible Assets included fully amortized assets that are still in use having a gross amount of Rs. 27,713,196 as at 31* March 2024 (2022/23 - Rs.

27,713,196).



LANKA ASHOK LEYLAND PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As At 31" March 2024 2023
Rs. Rs,
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
Equity Securities - Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (Note 18.1) 131,904 119,762
Corporate Debt Securities - Amortised Cost (Note 18.2) - 11,423,218
131,904 11,542,980
As At 31" March 2024 2023
Cost Market Value Cost Market Value
Rs. Rs. Rs Rs
18.1 Investment in Quoted Shares
Diesel & Motor Engineering PLC 7,417 131,904 7417 119,762
(257 Ordinary Shares)
7417 131,904 7,417 119,762
As At 31" March 2024 2023
Year of Carrying Year of Carrying
Maturity Amount Maturity Amount
Rs. Rs.
18.2 Investment in Debentures
Seylan Bank PLC - 2024 11,423,218
(100,000 Debentures at Rate of Rs. 100/- each)
E 11,423,218

Corporate debt securities are classified at amortised cost. Debentures have an interest rate of 15% and will be matured on April 2024.

Therefore this investment has been classified as short term investments under cash & cash Equivalents.

19 RENTAL RECEIVABLE FROM TRADE DEBTORS

Assets leased to customers which transfers substantially all risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset to the lessee, the
arrangement is classified as a finance lease. Amounts receivable under finance leases, net of initial rentals received, deferred interest income
and provision for impairment loss, are classified as Rental Receivable from Trade Debtors and are presented below;

As At 31" March

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Granted during the year

Total Rental Receivable

Less : Payment received during the year

Total Rental Outstanding (Note 19.4)

Less : Deferred Interest Income

Unearned Rental Income

Less : Provision for Impairment Loss (Note 19.3)
Balance as at the end of the year

19.1 Receivable after one year
Total Rental Receivable
Less : Deferred Interest Income
Unearned Rental Income
Less : Provision for Impairment Loss
Balance as at 31" March

19.2 Receivable within one year
Total Rental Receivable
Less : Deferred Interest Income
Unearned Rental Income
Less : Provision for Impairment Loss
Balance as at 31" March

Total

35

2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
1,249,985,440 2,046,435,646
130,014,750 16,890,000
1,380,000,190 2,063,325,646
(828,699,936) (813,340.206)
551,300,254 1,249,985,440
(32,108,546) (160,780,880)
519,191,708 1,089,204,560
(103,324,296) (250.392.614)
415,867,412 838.811.946
44,541,879 335,331,341
(2,746,188) (20,698,045)
41,795,691 314,633,296
41,795,691 314,633,296
506,758,375 914,654,099
(29,362,358) (140,082,835)
477,396,017 774,571,264
(103,324,296) (250,392,614)
374,071,721 524,178,650
415,867,412 838,811,946




LANKA'ASHOK LEYLAND PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19
19.3

19.4

19.5

19.6

19.7

RENTAL RECEIVABLE FROM TRADE DEBTORS (CONT.)

Movement of Impairment Loss

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of Rental Receivable from Trade Debtors during the year is as follows;

As at 31" March 2024 Individual Collective Total
Impairment Impairment Impairment
Rs. Rs. Rs.
Balance at the beginning of the year 249,981,930 410,684 250,392,614
Impairment Loss / (Reversal) recognized during the year (148,465,284) 1,396,966 (147,068,318)
Balance at the end of the year 101,516,646 1,807,650 103,324,296
As at 31" March 2023 Individual Collective Total
Impairment Impairment Impairment
Rs. Rs. Rs.
Balance at the beginning of the year 257,589,023 4,727 257,593,750
Impairment Loss / (Reversal) recognized during the year (7,607,093) 405,957 (7,201,136)
Balance at the end of the year 249,981,930 410,684 250,392,614
Rental Receivable from Trade Debtors by types of Counter Party are as follows;
As At 31" March 2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
Sri Lanka Transport Board (Note 34.1) 431,722,572 1,221,469,406
Corporate and Other Institutions 105,581,552 20,544,650
Individuals 13,996,130 7,971,384
551,300,254 1,249,985,440

Maturity Analysis of Rentals Receivables from Trade Debtors (Net of Deferred Interest Income and Impairment Provision)
Less than 06 06 -12 01-05 Total
Months Months Years
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Rental Receivables from Trade Debtors As at 31> March 2024 318,712,241 55,359,480 41,795,691 415,867,412
Rental Receivables from Trade Debtors As at 31 March 2023 234 333 816 289,844 834 314,633,296 838,811,946
Remaining Contractual Maturity Analysis of Rental Receivable from Trade Debtors
As At 31" March 2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
Within 1 Year E 541,273,917 914,654,099
1-2 Years 10,026,337 334,669,004
2 -3 Years - 662.337
Gross Rental Receivable from Trade Debtors 551,300,254 1,249,985,440
Less: Deferred Interest Income (32,108,546) (160,780,880)
519,191,708 1,089,204,560
Less: Provision for Impairment Loss (103,324,296) (250,392,614)
Net Rental Receivable from Trade Debtors 415,867,412 838,811,946
Amounts Recognised in Profit or Loss
The Profit or Loss include the following amounts in respect of finance lease.
Selling Profit 27,387,891 131,909
Lease Interest Income (Note 06) 144,590,886 249,312,231
171,978,777 249 444,140
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LANKA ASHOK LEYLAND PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As At 31*" March 2024 2023
Rs. Rs,
21 INVENTORIES
Fully Built Vehicle Stock 1,525,822,614 2,338,678.852
Semi-Knock-Down (SKD) Vehicle Stock 230,152,570 -
Generators 29,200,159 36,764,924
Cabins / Bodies & Work In Progress 369,965,145 303,567,296
Spare Parts & Consumables 954,412,478 718,007,030
3,109,552,966 3,397,018,102
Goods In Transit (Note 21.1) 1,325,896,089 36.696.905
4,435,449,055 3,433,715,007
Provision for Slow Moving & Obsolete Stocks (Note 21.2) (682,706,950) (809,720,855)

3,752,742,105 2,623,994,152

21.1  Goods in Transit includes the inventory shipped, but not received by the Company.
21.2  Provision for Slow Moving & Obsolete Stocks
Balance at the beginning of the year 809,720,855 819,907,419
(Reversal} / Charge for the year (127,013,905) (10,186,564)
Balance at the end of the year 682,706,950 809,720,855
21.3 Stocks have been pledged against the revolving import loan and import loan facilities obtained from Seylan Bank PLC and Commercial
Bank of Ceylon PLC.
As At 31" March 2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade Receivables 269,711,951 37,751,446
Receivables from Related Parties (Note 22.1) 517,563,564 474,929,037
Less: Provision for Impairment Loss (Note 22.2) (200,277,706) (93,140,233)
586,997,809 419,540,250
Advances to Staff 352,000 -
VAT Receivable 31,798,199 40,227,912
Other Receivables 209,214 71,137
619,357,222 459,839,299
22.1 Receivables from Related Parties
Sri Lanka Transport Board (Note 34.1) 219,195,968 71,843,620
Ashok Leyland Limited - India (Note 34.1) 212,257,006 313,098,297
Other Government Related Entities (Note 34.1) 78,110,590 85,987,120
Bank of Ceylon (Note 34.1) 8,000,000 4,000,000
517,563,564 474,929,037
22.2 Movement of Impairment Loss

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of Trade Receivables during the year is as follows;

As at 31" March 2024 Individual Collective Total
Impairment Impairment Impairment
Rs. Rs. Rs.
Balance at the beginning of the year 40,864,094 52,276,139 93,140,233
Impairment Loss recognized during the year 116,559,354 2,435,111 118,994,465
Amounts Write Offs - (11,856,992) (11,856,992)
Balance at the end of the year 157,423,448 42,854,258 200,277,706
As at 31" March 2023 Individual Collective Total
Impairment Impairment Impairment
g D Rs. Rs. Rs.
MG
Nt ALY
Balance at the beginning of the year 10,086,867 24,559,707 34,646,574
Impairment Loss / (Reversal) recognized during the year 30,777,227 27,716,432 58,493,659
Balance at the end of the year 40,864,094 52,276,139 93,140,233

22.3 Information about the Company’s exposure to credit and market risks, and impairment losses for trade and other receivables, is included in

Note 44,
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As At 31" March 2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
23 DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Deposits and Advances 34,778,113 98,245,937
Prepayments 21,146,884 13,995,633
55,924,997 112,241,570
24 CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
24.1 Favorable Balances
Short Term Investments (Note 24.3) - 1,355,114,264 2,300,000
Cash in Hand 1,433,965 1,754,254
Cash at Banks 84,565,828 22,995,805
1,441,114,057 27,050,059
24.2 Unfavorable Balances
Bank Overdrafis (51,039,458) (52,972,448)
(51,039,458) (52,972,448)
Cash & Cash Equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement 1,390,074,599 (25,922,389)
243 Short Term Investments
Investment in Fixed Deposits 2,300,000 2,300,000
Investments in Treasury Bills 1,220,588,797 -
Investment in Repo 120,800,000 -
Investment in Debentures 11,425,467 -
1,355,114,264 2,300,000
24.4 Bank Overdraft Facility Details
Bank Interest Rate Approved Security
(%) Facility (Rs.)
Seylan Bank PLC AWPLR 100,000,000 Land / Building / Inventory
Commecial Bank of Ceylon PLC AWPLR +1 50,000,000 Inventory
Bank of Ceylon AWPLR 1,900,000 Fixed Deposit
24.5 Unutilized bank overdraft facilities as at 31% March 2024 amounted to Rs. 151.9 Mn (2022/23 - Rs. 151.9 Mn).
As At 31" March 2024 2023
No of Rs. Rs.
Shares
25 STATED CAPITAL !
Ordinary Shares \ 3,620,843 36,208,430 36,208,430
Share Premium 13,166,720 13,166,720
Stated Capital 49,375,150 49,375,150
25.1 The Company is authorized for 6,000,000 Ordinary Shares (par value of a share is Rs. 10/-).
25.2 There were no movements in the issued share capital during the year,
25.3 All Ordinary Shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets and holders of these shares are entitled to dividends as declared
from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company.
25.4 A premium of Rs. 40/- per share was received for 329,168 ordinary shares issued as rights in 1992.

39



LANKA ASHOK LEYLAND PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As At 31" March 2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
26 GENERAL RESERVE
General Reserve 887,347,500 887,347,500
887,347,500 887,347,500

26.1 The General Reserve relates 1o retained earnings set aside by the Company for general application. There were no movements in the General
Reserves during the year.

27 DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION (NET)

As At 31" March 2024 2023
Rs. Rs.

27.1 Net Defined Benefit Obligation

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year (Note 27.2) 209,088,686 109.918,855
Fair Value of Plan Asset at the end of the year (Note 27.3) (151,365,141) -
Amount Recognised in Statement of Financial Position 57,723,545 109,918,855

27.2 Net Defined Benefit Obligation

The Company measures the Present Value of Defined Bencfit Obligation (PVDBO) which is a Defined Benefit Plan with the advice of an actuary
using Project Unit Credit Method. Changes in the present value of the Retirement Benefit Plan as follows:

As At 31" March 2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
Balance at the beginning of the year 109,918,855 96,937,072
Expenses recognised in Profit or Loss (Note 27.4) 26,251,758 21,286,093
Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (Note 27.5) 91,101,788 (5,728,897)
Payments during the year (18,183,715) (2.575,413)
Balance at the end of the year 209,088,686 109,918,855

27.3 Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Asset

Balance at the beginning of the year - -

Contribution by Empolyer 147,107,165 -
Return on Plan Asset 6,987,590 -
Actuarial Gains / (Loss) on Plan Asset (2,729,614) -
Benefit Paid by the Plan - =
Balance at the end of the year 151,365,141 -

27.3.1 Plan Asset

Plan Asset comprise the following,

Government Treasury Bonds 100,000,000 -
Corporate Debt Securities 47,107,165 -
Accrued Interest 4,257,976 -

151,365,141 =

The Employee Benefit Liability for the year is based on the actuarial valuation carried out by professionally qualified actuaries, Messrs. Actuarial
& Management Consultants (Pvt) Limited, on 31% March 2024.

Retirement Benefit Obligation of the Company is funded externally through an employees group gratuity plan at Life Insurance Corporation
(Lanka) Limited.

Mr. Umesh Gautam, Chief Executive Officer of Lanka Ashok Leyland PLC is an Independent Director of Life Insurance Corporation (Lanka)
Limited.
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27 DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION (NET) (CONT.)

For the Year Ended 31 March 2024 2023

27.4  Expenses Recognised in Profit or Loss

Current Service Cost 5,367,176 5,776,161
Interest Cost 20,884,582 15,509,932
Expense Recognised in Profit or Loss 26,251,758 21,286,093
Expected Return on Plan Asset (6,987,590) -

Net Expense Recognised in Profit or Loss 19,264,168 21,286,093

27.5  Expenses Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial Gains / (Loss) on Defined Benefit Obligation 91,101,788 (5,728,897)
Actuarial Gains / (Loss) on Plan Asset 2,729,614 -
93,831,402 (5,728,897)

27.6  Actuarial Assumptions

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining the cost are given below;

As At 31 March 2024 2023
Discount Rate 12.00% 19.00%
Expected Annual Average Salary Increment 15.00% 14.00%
Staff Tumover Factor 4.0% 0.8%
Retiring Age 60 Years 60 Years
Mortality Table A 67/70 A 67/70

27.3.1 The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases and mortality rates. In the absence of a deep
market in long term corporate bonds in Sri Lanka, the discount rate has been derived, and approximation of a long term interest rate of a 12% p.a
(2022/23 - 19% p.a) has been used to discount future liabilities. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date

27.7  Sensitivity Analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are the discount rate and the expected salary increase. The
sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes in the respective assumption that may occur at the end of the

reporting period,
As At/ For the Year Ended 31" March 2024 2023
PVODBO Benefit / (Expense) PVODBO Benefit / (Expense)
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs

1% Increase in Discount Rate 195,331,490 13,757,196 105,107,961 4,810,894
1% Decrease in Discount Rate 224,892,684 (15,803,998) 115,267,874 (5,349,019)
1% Increase in Salary Increment Rate 224,630,723 (15,542,037) 115,723,059 (5,804,204)
1% Decrease in Salary Increment Rate 195,275,416 13,813,270 104,628,259 5,290,596

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated

27.8  Maturity Profile of the Defined Benefit Obligation

As At 317 March 2024 2023
Rs. Rs

Expected Future Working Life
Within the Next Twelve Months A 43,469,932 44,375,225
Between One to Five Years [ 52,666,197 17,570,330
Between Five to Ten Years 61,150,230 32,653,634
More than Ten Years 51,802,327 15,319,666

209,088,686 109,918,855
Weighted Average duration of Defined Benefit Obligation 7.8 Years 5.4 Years

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability
recognised in the Statement of Financial Position,

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from previous year,
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28 LEASE LIABILITY

The Company's Leasing Activities

The Company occupies lease hold properties to carry out marketing operations and other related administrative activities.

As At 31" March

Balance as at 01* April

Additions

Lease Modification (Note 28.1)

Interest Expense Recognised in Profit or Loss
Payment for Lease Liability

Balance as at 31* March

28.1 The lease liability and right of use assets were remeasured due to revisions in the future lease payments for one of the contracts.

28.2 Lease Liabilities included in the Statement of Financial Position
Non-current
Current

28.3 Amounts recognised in Profit or Loss

For the Year Ended 31* March

Interest on Lease Liabilities
Recognised in Finance Cost
Expenses Relating to Short-term and low-value Assets
Depreciation - Right-of-use Assets
Recognised in Administrative Expenses
Total Amount recognised in Profit or Loss

28.4 Amounts Recognised in Statement of Cash Flows

Payment for Lease Liabilities

28.5 Maturity Analysis — Contractual Undiscounted Cash Fows

2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
60,775,690 67,972,501
- 15,829,294
(9,855,853) (9,875,218)
9,636,305 11,169,113
(25,920,000) (24,320,000)
34,636,142 60,775,690
11,112,605 30,420,490
23,523,537 30,355,200
34,636,142 60,775,690
2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
9,636,305 11,169,113
9,636,305 11,169,113
20,113,866 35,850,000
9,393,514 12,827,791
29,507,380 48,677,791
39,143,685 59,846,904
25,920,600 24,320,000

The following table sets out a maturity analysis of lease payments, showing the undiscounted lease payments to be paid after the reporting

date.

Less than one year
One to five years
Total Undiscounted Lease Liabilities
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2023/24 2022/23
Rs. Rs.
28,032,000 30,355,200
13,600,000 46,510,720
41,632,000 76,865.920




LANKA ASHOK LEYLAND PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As At 31" March

29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade Payables ;
Accruals
Import Duties and Related Other Payable
Refundable Deposits
Unclaimed Dividend
Deferred Income (Note 29.1)
Unclaimed Wages
SSCL Payable
Other Liabilities

29.1 Movement of Deferred Income
Balance at the beginning of the year
Charge / (Reversal) for the year
Balance at the end of the year

Deferred Income represent the Free Service Provision as per SLFRS 15 - "Revenue Recognition from Customer Contracts.

As At 31" March

30 AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTY

Payable to Ashok Leyland Limited - India (Note 34.1)

31 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES
Balance at the beginning of the year
Income Tax Liability for the year (Note 11.2)

Over Under Provision of Current Tax in Respect of Previous years -

Tax Paid during the year
WHT Recoverable
Balance at the end of the year

32 PROVISION FOR WARRANTY
Balance at the beginning of the year
Provision / (Reversal) for the year
Balance at the end of the year

2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
536,114,362 528,961,833
106,105,672 47,509,173
149,708,547 24,360,451
158,551,316 103,398,258
1,729,068 2,744,602
3,625,512 2,172,920
70,333 159,662
11,261,577 3,101,105
22,574,268 18,252,775
989,740,655 730,660,779
2,172,920 5,190,602
1,452,592 (3,017,682)
3,625,512 2,172,920
2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
1,655,721,179 333,303,000
1,655,721,179 333,303,000
19,007,471 39,528,436
284,531,052 33,617,820
126,000
(103,864,138) (54,057,487)
(2,748,740) (207,298)
196,925,645 19,007,471
594,547 3,479,532
9,178,575 (2.884.985)
9,773,122 594,547

Provision for warranties relates mainly to vehicles sold during the last six months of 2023 and 2024. The provision is based on estimates
made from historical warranty data associated with similar products and services. The Company expects to settle the majority of the liability

over the next year.
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LANKA ASHOK LEYLAND PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33

33.1

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Movement of Short Term Borrowings
For the Year Ended 31° March 2024

Lender Purpose

Seylan Bank PLC Import/ Financing

For the Year Ended 31 March 2023

Lender Purpose

Seylan Bank PLC Import/ Financing

33.2 Assets Pledged

Rate of
Interest %

AWPLR

Rate of
Interest %

AWPLR

Asat Obtained During  Repayments During As at
01* April 2023 the Year the Year 31 March 2024
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
As at Obtained During Repayments During As at
01% April 2022 the Year the Year 31" March 2023
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
378,205,767 222,848,000 (601,053,767) -
378,205,767 222,848,000 (601,053,767) -

Factory Land, Building, Machinery, Other Equipment and Stocks have been pledged against the Import Loans obtained from banks.
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LANKA ASHOK LEYLAND PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (CONT.)
34.5 Compensation of Key Management Personnel
According to LKAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”, Key Management Personnel, are those planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
entity.
Key Management Personnel include members of the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, total amounts paid as
salaries and reimbursement of expenses amounts to Rs. 35,872,703/- (2022/23 - Rs. 33,264,216/-).
There were no compensation paid to Key Management Personnel during the year other than those disclosed below
For the Year Ended 31* March 2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
Key Management Personnel Payments
a. Short Term Employee Benefits 34,344,848 31,881,825
b. Post-Employment Benefits 1,527,855 1,382,391
c. Termination Benefits - -
d. Share-Based Payments - -
35,872,703 33,264,216
34.6 Transactions, Arrangements and Agreements Involving KMP and Their Close Family Members (CFM)
CFM of a KMP are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
They may include;
(a) the individual’s domestic partner and children;
(b) children of the individual’s domestic partner; and
(c) dependents of the individual or the individual’s domestic partner
CFM are related parties to the entity. There were no transactions with CFM during the year.
34.7 Loans to Directors
No loans have been given to the Directors of the Company.
34.8 Terms and Conditions of the Transactions with KMPs
The terms and conditions of the transactions with Key Management Personnel and their related entities were no more favorable than those available,
or which might reasonably be expected to be available, on similar transactions to non Key Management Personnel related entities.
35 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
There were no material capital expenditure approved by the Board of Directors as at 31% March 2024 other than following;
The Company has entered into construction and asset procurement contracts with unrelated parties, amounting to Rest. 66,532,952, for concrete
laying in the parking shed of factory premises and assets procurement for Body Building Operation. As at 31st March 2024, Rest. 20,752,182 of
such contract commitments had not yet been incurred, the parking shed area is still under construction and referred assets are yet to be received from
the supplier.
36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There were no material Contingent Liabilities, which require adjustments to or disclosures in the Financial Statements as at 3 1% March 2024.
37 LITIGATIONS AND CLAIMS

Based on the available information, the Management is of the view that there are no material litigation or clams that could have material impact on
the financial position on the Company. Accordingly, no provision has been made for legal claims in the Financial Statements.
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LANKA ASHOK LEYLAND PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38 EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
There were no other material events occurring after the reporting period that requires adjustments to or disclosure in the Financial Statements other
than disclosed below;

After satisfying the Solvency Test in accordance with Section 57 of the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, the Directors recommend the payment of
first and final dividend of Rs. 15/- per share (150%) amounting to Rs. 54,312,645/~ for the year ended 3 1™ March 2024 (2022/23- Rs. 5/- per share
(50%) amounting to Rs. 18,104,215/-), which will be declared at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 24" September 2024.

In accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 10 (LKAS 10) “Events after the reporting period™ this proposed first and final dividend has not
been recognized as a liability as at 31% March 2024. Subsequent to the reporting period, no circumstance has arisen which would require adjustments
to or disclosure in the Financial Statements, other than the above.

39 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
The Company is a quoted public limited liability Company with 41.77% of the Share Capital held by Lanka Leyland (Pvt) Limited and 27.85% of
the Share Capital held by Ashok Leyland Limited - India.

40 SEGMENTAL REPORTING
There are no distinguishable components of the business defined as segments and all operations are treated as one segment.

41 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
The number of employees as of year end was as follows;

As At 31" March 2024 2023
Executives 81 71

Non Executives 141 159

222 230
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Overview

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments;
Credit Risk
Liquidity Risk
Market Risk
Operational Risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, and the Company’s objectives, policies and processes of
measuring and managing risk.

Risk Management Framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework

The Company Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures,
and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Company Audit Committee is
assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers.

Exposure to Credit Risk

The net carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the reporting date
was as follows;

As At 31" March 2024 2023

Rs. Rs.
Trade Receivables 586,997,809 419,540,250
Other Receivables 35,339,327 98,317,074
Rental Receivable from Trade Debtors 415,867,412 838,811,946
Cash at Banks and Short Term Investments in Banks 1,439,680,092 25,295,805
Total 2,477,884,640 1,381,965,075

Trade and Other Receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of the customers. However, management also
considers the demographics of the Company’s customer base, including the default risk of the industry as these factors may have an influence on
credit risk. During 2023/24, approximately 6.1% (2022/23 : 2.2%) of the Company’s revenue was attributable to sales transactions with the largest
single customer.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of impaired losses in respect of trade receivables. The main
components of this allowance are determined based on historical data of payment statistics of similar financial assets.

The maturity analysis of Rental Receivable from Trade Debtors is given in Note 19.5 and 19.6. The aging of trade receivables net of impairment as
at 31° March was as follows;

As at 317 March 2024

0- 60 Days 61 - 90 Days 91 -120 Days 121-180 Days More than 180 Days Total
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Trade Receivables (Gross) 596,172,102 144,131,340 13,702,234 7,337,399 25,932,440 787,275,515
Impairment (42,037,886) (122,070,432) (5,293,041) (5,153,269) (25,723,078) (200,277,706)
Trade Receivables (Net) 554,134,216 22,060,908 8,409,193 2,184.130 209.362 586,997,809
As at 31* March 2023
0-60Days 61-90Days 91-120 Days 121-180 Days More than 180 Days Total
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Trade Receivables (Gross) 412,551,405 27,895,174 29,233,847 6,288,263 36,711,794 512,680,483
Impairment (23,301.255) (15,633,523) (11.915.685) (4,160,320) (26,129 450) (93,140,233)
Trade Receivables (Net) 387,250,150 12,261,651 17,318,162 2,127,943 582,344 419,540,250

The maximum exposure to credit risk for rental receivable from trade debtors by type of counterparty is given in Note 19.4. The maximum
exposure to credit risk for trade receivable by type of counterparty was as follows;

Carrying Amount

As at 31" March 2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
Government Entities 132,531,112 84,346,822
Corporates and Other [nstitutions (e + 442,608,335 330,465,748
End-user Customers '3\, . 11,858,362 4,727,680
B 586,997,809 419.540.250
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The movement in the allowance for impainment in respect of trade and lease rental receivables during the year was as follows;

As at 31" March 2024 Individual Collective Total
Impairment Impairment Impairment
Rs. Rs. Rs.
Balance as at 01" April 2023 290,846,024 52,686,823 343,532,847
Provision Charge / (Reversal) for the year (31,905,930) 3,832,077 (28,073,853)
Write-off during the year - (11,856,992) (11,856,992)
Balance as at 31* March 2024 258,940,094 44,661,908 303,602,002
As at 317 March 2023 Individual Collective Total
Impairment [mpairment Impairment
Rs. Rs. Rs.
Balance as at 01% April 2022 267,675,890 24,564,434 292,240,324
Provision Charge / (Reversal) for the year 23,170,134 28,122 389 51,292,523
Balance as at 31 March 2023 290,846,024 52,686,823 343,532,847

Cash at Banks

The Company held cash at banks of Rs. 1.44 Bn. as at 31* March 2024 (2022/23: Rs. 25.29 Mn.), which represents its maximum credit exposure on these

assets

Respective credit ratings of banks with Company cash balances held are as follows;

As at 31" March

Bank Credit Rate

Bank of Ceylon CC (Ika)

Cargills Bank A (lka)

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC A (lka) \
Indian Bank BB+ \!
People's Bank A (lka) L] |
Sampath Bank A (lka)

Seylan Bank PLC A- (Ika)

State Bank of India BBB -

Liquidity Risk

Cash at Bank

2024 2023
Rs. Rs.

2,300,000 2,300,000
261,006,883 2,766,297
1,138,963,940 19,458,081
476,122 477,000

688,247 -
24,780,961 226,761
11,450,467 25,000
13,473 42,667
1,439,680,093 25,295,806

Liquidity risk is the risk of facing difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or affecting the Company’s reputation

The Company also monitors the level of expected cash inflows from trade and other receivables together with expected cash outflows on trade and other
payables, In addition, the Company maintains Rs. 151 9 Mn overdraft facility that is secured. Interest would be payable at the market rate

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities at its Carrying Value;

As at 31° March 2024 Carrying Contractual Cash Flows
Amount Total 0 - 30 Days 31-90 Days More than 90 Days
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Trade Payables 536,114,362 536,114,362 78,753,475 457,360,887 -
Amounts due to Related Party 1,655,721,179 1,655,721,179 255,597,189 674,171,556 725,952,434
Lease Liability 34,636,142 41,632,000 1,200,000 24,432,000 16,000,000
Bank Overdrafts 51,039,458 51,039,458 51,039,458 - -
Total 2,277,511,141 2,284,506,999 386,590,122 1,155,964,443 741,952,434
As at 31 March 2023 Carrying Contractual Cash Flows
Amount Total 0 - 30 Days 31-90 Days More than 90 Days
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Trade Payables 528,961,833 528,961,833 50,407,783 478,554,050 -
Amounts due to Related Party 333,303,000 333,303,000 333,303,000 - -
Lease Liability 60,775,690 76,865,920 1,200,000 26,755,200 48,910,720
Bank Overdrafts 52,972,448 52,972,448 52,972,448 - -
Total 976,012,971 992,103,201 437.883.231 505,309,250 48,910,720
Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices that will affect the Company’s income
or the value of its financial instruments. The management conduct periodic reviews on the Company’s pricing & pricing policy in order to mitigate the
market risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return,
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Foreign Currency Risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk mainly on payable for purchases that are denominated in US Dollars. The Management closely monitors the exchange rate
movement, {or necessary action

The Financial Instruments denominated in US Dollars as on 31* March are;

As At 31" March 2024 2023
Exchange Exchange
KR
LKR Rate Uss L Rate USs$
Payable to Ashok Leyland Limited - India 1,655,721,179 305.33 5,422,727 333,303,000 336.01 991,944
1,655,721,179 5,422,727 333,303,000 991,944

The Company carefully monitored the implications and took preventive measures to early settle the liabilities when ever possible

Sensitivity Analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Sri Lankan rupees against US dollar at the year end would have affected the measurement of financial liabilities
denominated in a foreign currency and affected profit before tax by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant and ignores any impact on forecasted purchases

The following details the Company's sensitivity movement in the foreign currencies. The foreign exchange rate sensitivity is calculated for each currency by aggregation
of the net foreign exchange rate exposure of a currency and a simultaneous parallel foreign exchange rates shift in the foreign exchange rates of each currency by 5%. 5%
represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.

Profit before Tax

Strengthening Weakening
2023-24
LKR (5% movement) 82,786,059 (82,786,059)
2022-23
LKR (5% movement) 16,665,150 (1,665,150)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rate. The Company's
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rate relates primarily to the Company's short term debt obligations with floating rates. The Company manages its interest
rate risk by monitoring interest rate fluctuations to enable necessary back-up plans to be ready in advance to mitigate the risk and by ensuring that the import loans are
settled within a shortest possible period by improving the working capital cycle and negotiating best possible rates with the Banks.

Exposure to Interest Rate Risk
The interest rate profile of the Company’s inlerest-bearing financial instruments is given in Note 243 and 33 1 to the Financial Statements

Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business
Board of Directors of the Company monitors the return on capital, as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

Company’s debt to equity ratio at 31" March was as follows;

As at 31 March 2024 2023

Rs. Rs.
Interest Bearing Borrowings 51,039,458 52,972,448
Total Equity 4,589,396,879 3,814,335,267
Equity and Debts 4,640,436,337 3,867,307,715
Gearing Ratio 1% 1%
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